
Procurement Board 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows 
for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 28 November 2018

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: The Boardroom, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 14 November 2018 

(Pages 1 - 4)

4  Matters arising 

5  Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public) 

5a Request for Contract Extension - Step up to Social Work (Pages 5 - 12)

5b Bloom Street and William Street Public Realm Improvements (Pages 13 - 20)

5c Piloting the Bulk Purchasing of Full-time Equivalent Alternative 
Provision Placements for Pupils in KS3 and KS4 

(Pages 21 - 32)

5d Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - 
Contract award - Fire Alarms and Emergency Lighting - inspection 
and Maintenance 

(Pages 33 - 38)

6  Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public) 

7  Exclusion of the public 

8  Decision items - Part 2 (closed to the public) 

8a Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - (Pages 39 - 40)

Public Document Pack



Award of contract - Multi-Disciplinary Design Team consultants - 
Proposed Intermediate Care Unit 

9  Date and time of next meeting 

10:00 a.m. on Wednesday 12 December 2018 in the Boardroom, 
Salford City Council, Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA.

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor

E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk



Page | 1 

PROCUREMENT BOARD

14 November 2018 

Meeting commenced at 10:03 a.m.
Meeting ended at 10:45 a.m.

PRESENT: Councillor Bill Hinds (in the chair) and the City Mayor Paul Dennett

IN ATTENDANCE: Chris Hesketh Head of Financial Management
David Hunter Assistant Director - ICT
Paul Nugent Head of Strategic Procurement
Frank O’Sullivan Strategic HR and OD Manager
Carol Eddleston Senior Democratic Services Advisor

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Boshell and Merry.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 17 October were approved as a correct record.

4. MATTERS ARISING

There were no matters arising.

5. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL – EXCEPTION TO CONTRACTUAL STANDING ORDERS 
– ONGOING SUPPORT AND MAINTENANCE OF ZIPPORAH BOOKING SOLUTION 
AND THE PROCUREMENT OF AN ADDITIONAL BOLT-ON MODULE FOR THE 
REGISTRARS’ MODULE

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Service Reform seeking an 
exception to Contractual Standing Orders in order to allow a contract to be awarded for 
the ongoing support and maintenance of Zipporah Modules for room bookings, generic 
appointments system, events booking system and registrars. 

A number of Zipporah modules were well embedded in the Place Directorate and it was 
now proposed to extend the use of the Registrars module with the purchase of the 
‘Ceremony module’. The board was informed that all of the council’s Zipporah licences 
would be invalidated without a contract in place for ongoing support and maintenance and 
negotiating a three year contract had resulted in a better deal.

Zipporah operated nationally but was not based locally and it was acknowledged that 
better intelligence about the scope of businesses across the city and wider GM region 
would be helpful in terms of allowing more business to be transacted locally when and 
where appropriate.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Page | 2 

RESOLVED, THAT:

(1) An exception to Contractual Standing Orders be approved in accordance with 
Paragraph 3.1 for the following reasons: specialist services/supplies which are 
available only from one supplier; compatibility with existing services/products, and 
value for money; and

(2) A 36 months’ contract, with a total value of £68,440, be awarded to Zipporah, for the 
ongoing support and maintenance of the following modules: room bookings, generic 
appointments, events booking and registrars.

6. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL – EXCEPTION TO CONTRACTUAL STANDING ORDERS 
AND PROPOSED STRATEGY FOR THE PROCUREMENT OF APPRENTCESHIPS

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Service Reform seeking approval of 
the proposed strategy for the procurement of apprenticeships and an exception to 
Contractual Standing Orders in order to allow Salford City Council to enter into a strategic 
partnership with Salford College and the University of Salford as part of this proposed 
strategy.

The board was informed that the GM Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) for 
apprenticeship provision procurement had been made available for GMCA authorities to 
use from February 2018. Providers from across the country could apply to go onto the 
framework and consequently the system did not necessarily provide significant Social 
Value opportunities for Salford. The DPS was likely to continue to be a useful tool for the 
procurement of some apprenticeships in the future but the differentiated approach being 
proposed should ensure that apprenticeship provision was better suited to the needs of 
the council and its learners, rather than being limited to the abilities of the providers on 
the DPS. 

It was envisaged that the strategic partnership would be closely monitored to ensure high 
quality provision and it was agreed that monitoring reports would be brought to Cabinet 
Briefing for assurance purposes.

There was an acknowledgement in the meeting that businesses more generally needed 
to be involved in the co-design of apprenticeships as many businesses often reported that 
newly recruited apprentices were not ready for the workplace.

RESOLVED, THAT:

(1) The proposed strategy for the procurement of apprenticeships be approved;

(2) An exception to Contractual Standing Orders be approved in accordance with 
Paragraph 3.1 for the following reasons: the need for the goods, services or works is 
so urgent that the time needed to comply with the rules would be prejudicial to the 
council’s interests; specialist services/supplies which are available from only one 
supplier, and value for money, and

Page 2



Page | 3 

(3) Permission be granted for Salford City Council to enter into a strategic partnership 
with Salford College and the University of Salford as part of the strategy for the 
procurement of apprenticeships approved at (1) above,

(4) Quality monitoring reports of the strategic partnership be submitted to Cabinet 
Briefing at appropriate intervals.

7.  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

 Wednesday 28 November 2018 at 10:00 a.m. in the Boardroom, Salford City Council, 
Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



*Part 1 – Open to the public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for People

TO  

Procurement Board

ON

28/11/2018

TITLE:  Approval for an Extension of Contract for the University of Salford to provide 
the academic teaching for cohort 6 of the Step Up to SW Programme

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Procurement Board:

(1) Approve the extension  of  Contract for Cohort 6 of the Step Up to Social Work 
Programme  as detailed in the table below:

Detail required

Contract Reference C2105

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project

To provide academic teaching to 28 students on 
Cohort 6 of the Step Up to Social Work 

Programme
Name of Contractor The University of Salford
Type of organisation

(to be supplied by Corporate 
Procurement)

Registered Charity

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate 

Procurement)
Non-SME

Value of Contract Extension £226,800 Full Project
Existing Contract Term 01/04/2017 to 30/04/2018

Extension Period Requested 01/07/2019 to 31/03/2021

Contact Officer (Name & number) Elaine Johnston Jones

Lead Service Group People Services

Page 5

Agenda Item 5a



Funding Source Grant

(2) Note that prior to the end of the period of time covered by the exception as 
indicated in (1) above, the Strategic Director will determine whether the service 
is to be decommissioned or, in consultation with the Corporate  Procurement 
Team, will agree  to undertake a compliant procurement process to re-let the 
contract by the end of the exception period.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek request an extension to contract for the 
provision of academic teaching to 28 students on Cohort 6 of the Step Up to Social 
Work Programme

There is provision within the current contract to extend the agreement for a further 
period from July 2019 to March 2021.

Step Up to Social Work’ is a Department for Education (DfE) initiative which started 
in 2010. Four cohorts of students have been through the programme with the 
Greater Manchester Regional Partnership. A successful bid for grant funding has 
allowed a fifth cohort to be progressed and the regional partnership to include seven 
Local Authorities (Salford, Manchester, Bolton, Wigan, Bury, Stockport and Oldham). 
Tameside and Trafford have successfully applied to join the partnership bringing the 
total number of Local Authorities in the Greater Manchester Regional Step up to 
Social Work Partnership to nine.

Salford City Council acts as Lead Agency in the partnership, holding and dispersing 
all funding and establishing the contract with an approved Higher Education 
Institution on behalf of the partnership. This report seeks to gain approval to award 
the contract. There is provision within the current contract to extend the agreement 
for a further period from 01/07/2019 to 31/03/2021

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Contract Award Procurement Board Report

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/s1771/05d%20-
%20Step%20Up%20to%20Social%20Work.pdf

Contract Award Record of Decision

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/g980/Decisions%20Wednesday%20
08-Mar-2017%2010.00%20Procurement%20Board.pdf?T=2

KEY DECISION:  No

Page 6

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/s1771/05d%20-%20Step%20Up%20to%20Social%20Work.pdf
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/s1771/05d%20-%20Step%20Up%20to%20Social%20Work.pdf
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/g980/Decisions%20Wednesday%2008-Mar-2017%2010.00%20Procurement%20Board.pdf?T=2
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/g980/Decisions%20Wednesday%2008-Mar-2017%2010.00%20Procurement%20Board.pdf?T=2


DETAILS:

Introduction

‘Step Up to Social Work’ is currently in its fifth cohort, with Seven Greater 
Manchester authorities currently participating. Two further Local Authorities have 
been successful in their application to join the Partnership. Students on Cohort 5 are 
due to complete in March 2019. The success of the programme means that almost 
all candidates are likely to be employed by their host authority.

The programme is delivered through the ‘Greater Manchester Regional Partnership’ 
(G.M.R.P.), formed when funding announcements were originally made in 2009/10. 
The programme is wholly funded by grant funding made available - originally by 
Children’s Workforce Development Council (C.W.D.C.) and subsequently by the 
Department for Education (DfE). Salford City Council currently acts as Lead 
Authority for the partnership. This involves amongst other things, receiving and 
dispersing the funding from DfE in line with the grant funding requirements. 

Salford City Council also holds the contract – on behalf of the partnership - for the 
academic input which allows the award of Postgraduate Diploma in social work to be 
made to candidates – thus allowing them to be registered with Health and Care 
Professions Council (H.C.P.C.) and become practicing social workers.

The commissioning of the University of Salford for Cohort 6 was included as part of 
the contracting process for Cohort 5 as an option to extend upon successful delivery 
of Cohort 5.

In addition the University of Salford have successfully delivered the teaching to 4 
cohorts of Step to SW students and are currently nearing the completion of cohort 5 
in March 2019. Over these cohorts the HEI has closely evaluated the programme 
with students and employers to ensure that the teaching is effective in delivering 
quality learning which can then be translated into practice on the student’s 
placement. Thus the programme is tried and tested.

In the event of the Department for Education funding a seventh cohort of Step Up to 
Social Work this would need to go through the full tendering and procurement 
process via the Chest.

The University of Salford is partnered with Salford Council in many areas including 
undertaking research. It is both a key institution as well as a key feature in the life of 
many Salford citizens not least because of its location in Salford. Academic and 
other staff have a good understanding of and work well with the local community. 

Funding for a cohort 6 was announced, and the Greater Manchester Regional 
partnership was notified of its successful bid on the 8th November 2018. The 
partnership currently consists of seven participating authorities with 23 trainees. The 
partnership consists of; Salford, Manchester, Bolton, Bury, Stockport, Wigan and 

Page 7



Oldham. For cohort 6 the Partnership will increase to 28 students with the addition of 
two Local Authorities, Trafford and Tameside

Funding to be made available for the period July 2019-March 2021 by DfE

 £19,833 per trainee this will be made available to the trainees as a bursary
 £1,750 per trainee this will be dispersed to each participating authority pro 

rata
 £11,667 per trainee available “to allow local authorities to procure the 

academic course from their chosen HEI”

In addition to the above, administrative funding is also paid to the local authorities 
involved in the project as follows:

 £38,000 to each regional partnership for establishing and administering the 
regional partnership of local authorities and their selected HEI provider. 

 £10,000 to each regional partnership for making delivery arrangements with 
an HEI provider.

On behalf of the Greater Manchester Regional Step Up to SW Partnership we agree 
to pay the University of Salford £8,100 per student which includes the academic 
teaching and the buying in of guest speakers or specialist training. There will be 28 
students at a total cost of £226,800

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: N/A

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

The contract will have no negative impact on any of the communities within Salford. 
Recruitment to the Step Up to Social Work Programme is national and positively 
encourages applicants from a range of diverse backgrounds.

 As part of the competitive process, it was ensured that the contract was awarded to 
providers who understood and could train participants to develop skills and 
knowledge on anti-discriminatory practice – essential social work skill requirements. 
Therefore, the new award will have a positive impact on communities in Greater 
Manchester. 

Page 8



ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

 ‘Step Up to Social Work’ is assisting Children Services in all 7 participating Local 
Authorities to meet their social work staffing requirements. It will assist 2 further 
Local Authorities to recruit social workers on completion of cohort 6. This is achieved 
by providing high quality staff able to ‘hit the ground running’. As a tailored children 
and families training programme, it allows trainees to work towards a Postgraduate 
Diploma in social work, alongside intensive hands-on experience. Failure to 
participate has an impact on the recruitment strategy of social workers.

A decision to award the contract is required by December 2018, the timescale set by 
Department of Education. Grant funding may be in jeopardy if we do not meet this 
deadline.

SOURCE OF FUNDING: The ‘Step Up to Social Work’ initiative is 100% grant 
funded through the Department for Education.  

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the provision of goods, services or the execution 
of works, the Council must comply with the provisions of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 (the Regs) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s) as 
set out in the Constitution, failing which the award of a contract may be subject to 
legal challenge.

It is an established principle that an existing public contract is capable of being 
extended (or modified providing any modification does not affect the overall nature of 
the contract), and CSO’s also allow for contract extensions to be made, where the 
parties agree and where the original contract makes provision for such an extension 
of the original term. In view of the value of the extension exceeding £150,000, the 
approval should be made by Procurement Board. 

When the contract was originally put out to tender by way of a fully compliant open 
OJEU process, and subsequently awarded to the University of Salford, it was made 
clear in the documentation that the original term would be subject to a potential 
extension, hence any risk that the proposed extension would be subject to realistic 
challenge by an aggrieved provider, on the basis that it ought to have been put out to 
tender and advertised in accordance with public contract regulations and CSO’s, is 
extremely low, and the option to extend within the contract is now being properly 
exercised.

Once approved the extension will commit the Council to the period outlined in the 
report.

Page 9



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: the Finance Team –Dave Cope

 The contract will be wholly funded by the grant issued by DFE to Salford City 
Council.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: The Corporate Procurement Team 

The contract for the Step Up to Social Work Cohort 5 was advertised via the OJEU 
open tendering procedure on the Chest.

The original tender included the following information;
“There will be an option to extend this contract for delivery of a further cohort (cohort 
6) of the Step Up to Social Work programme.  This will be subject to the following 
conditions; 

 The continuing existence of the Regional Partnership for the Step Up to Social 
Work programme

 Announcement by the Department for Education (DfE) of further Cohorts to 
the Step Up to Social Work programme

 The Regional Partnership successfully securing funding from the DfE for 
further Cohorts to the Step Up to Social Work programme

 Successful delivery of Cohort 5 by the successful Higher Education Institution

 Satisfactory performance and quality levels achieved for Cohort 5 by the 
successful Higher Education Institution”

The Council is therefore exercising its option to extend to a further cohort as this was 
included in the original tender specification, and therefore granting approval to the 
extension complies with the requirements of Salford City Council’s contractual 
standing orders.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

Children’s Services

CONTACT OFFICER: Elaine Johnston Jones                                        TEL. NO. 
0161 603 4187

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): N/A

Page 10



Appendix 1
Additional Information on ‘Step Up to Social Work’ programme
The initial training of social workers remains almost exclusively a candidate 
\academic-driven process. Typically individuals apply for places on university 
courses (to a quantum determined by Higher Education funding and the ambition of 
Higher Education Institutions, not the employment market for social workers), are 
trained with significant placement input from agencies and then may, or may not, 
enter the job market dependant on individual ambition.
From an agency point of view this process is wasteful. Despite engagement with 
universities in the design and delivery of courses, the agencies can remain junior 
partners and very much accidental beneficiaries.
‘Step Up to Social Work’ (Cohort 6), as with Cohorts 1,2 & 3,4 and 5 will remain a 
tailored children and families training programme which allows trainees to work 
towards a Postgraduate Diploma in social work, alongside intensive hands-on 
experience. It is specifically designed as a new way for career changers to train to 
become qualified social workers.
The programme is designed to enable coursework and practical experience to 
happen simultaneously. Students are work-based rather than campus based 
throughout the period of their training However, this means the demands on the 
individual are rigorous and the level of commitment expected from students is high.
For cohort 6, the course is also designed to be completed within a 14 month period 
as opposed to the usual 36 months.
A lot is expected of candidates, but they are fully supported throughout with one-to 
one support within the workplace as well as having access to tutors in allocated 
universities. In addition, trainees will receive at least £19,833 for the 14 month period
to support them through their training.
On successful completion of the programme, trainees qualify as a social worker and 
are awarded a Postgraduate Diploma in social work.

Applicants can only be considered if they have:
A 1st or 2:1 degree in any discipline (except social work)
GCSEs in English and mathematics at grade C or above (or equivalent)
Experience of working with children, young people and families
Emotional resilience (assessed in the selection process)

Experience from previous cohorts is that the programme produces competent and 
motivated social workers who are able to ‘hit the ground running’, 90% of trainees in
Cohort 4 were employed by their host agency. We expect a similar result for cohort 5 
when this finishes in March 2019.As the shortage of good quality and experienced 
children and families social workers remains an issue, we anticipate that the 
employment of Cohort 6 trainees will exceed this.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 – Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE 

TO THE PROCUREMENT BOARD

On the 28th November 2018

TITLE:  BLOOM STREET AND WILLIAM STREET PUBLIC REALM 
IMPROVEMENTS

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That the Procurement Board authorises a total expenditure of £567,676.57 for the 
implementation of the Bloom Street and William Street Public Realm Improvement 
project comprising of: 

1. A Target Price of £504,624.55 submitted by Urban Vision Highway Services to 
carry out the works. 

2. Urban Vision Professional Services fees of £30,761.09 Supervision, Road 
Safety Audits and CDM duties associated the above works.

3. An order for £29,564.28 to Transport for Greater Manchester Urban Traffic 
Control for the installation of the Traffic signals on the A6042 Trinity Way.

4. Orders for a total value of £2,726.65 for utility works required to implement the 
scheme.

Page 13

Agenda Item 5b



2

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Bloom Street and William Street Public Realm 

Improvements  
Name of  Engineering Consultant
Name of Successful Contractor Urban Vision Partnership Highway Services
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
05292634

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Contract Value
Other Costs

£
£

£504,624.55
£63,052.02

Contract Duration 5 months
Contract Start Date 05/12/2018
Contract End Date 05/04/2019

Contact Officer (Name & number) Matthew Longstaff 0161 779 4900
Partner (please identify below)Lead Service Group

 Urban Vision
How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Development Services Partnership Agreement

Framework Details (where 
applicable)

(Procurement Body, Framework Reference 
& Title, Start/End Dates, Hyperlink, etc.)

Development Services Partnership Agreement 

Funding Source Block 3 Capital Programme for 2018/19

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

As part of the 2018/19 Block 3 Transport Capital Programme it is intended to carry 
out works to install a Toucan crossing combined with localised footway/carriageway 
improvements to enhance multi-user connectivity. 

The community has previously identified Bloom Street as an important pedestrian 
and cycling link for neighbouring communities (notably those in Trinity) to access 
Salford Central Station and Manchester city centre.

The Bloom Street and William Street proposals also include enhanced landscaping 
areas, trees, Sustainable urban Drainage Systems (SuDS) and footway widening to 
improve local amenities and provide space for more community and social 
interaction.

The scheme will terminate at a point where it can be linked into planned works to 
New Bailey Street and Chapel Street East.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:    
 008538-UVP-HGN-XX-DR-C-2001 General Arrangement
 008538-UVP-ELS-XX-DR-L-2001 Landscape General Arrangement

Page 14



3

KEY DECISION:    Yes 

1. Detail 

1.1 The Local Transport Capital Block 3 Programme 2018/19 was approved by the 
City Council on 14th May 2018.

1.2 Urban Vision Partnership’s Engineering Design Section has been requested to 
design, procure and supervise the project in accordance with the 
Development Services Partnership Agreement. 

1.3 Construction of the scheme will be delivered by Urban Vision Highway 
Services in accordance with the Development Services Partnership 
Agreement.

1.4 Traffic Signals installation for the Toucan Crossing will be delivered by 
Transport for Greater Manchester Urban Traffic Control under the service level 
agreement with Salford City Council (SCC).

2. Value for Money Assessment

2.1 The available procurement options were assessed for how to best deliver the 
project. The Bolton and Manchester frameworks were considered, but it was 
decided that direct allocation to Urban Vision Highway Services was the 
preferred route due to a number of benefits:

2.2 Time: Direct allocation reduces the timescales for the procurement process 
and lead-in for mobilisation. This in turn reduces costs due to the shorter 
durations involved.

2.3 Risk: Early contractor involvement is made possible through direct allocation 
which enables the contractor to consider the ‘buildability’ of the scheme at an 
earlier stage, giving greater out-turn cost certainty and the opportunity to 
mitigate any construction risk identified.

2.4 Cost: Early engagement with the local supply chain reduces the direct works 
cost. The scheme design drawings produced by Urban Vision Engineering 
Design were sent out to competitive tender by Urban Vision Highway Services, 
with three tender prices returned. The lowest of these was initially substantially 
higher than the available budget but following a value-engineering exercise 
and negotiation process with the lowest tenderer, the direct works cost was 
significantly reduced to an amount which is considered to represent value for 
money.  
Direct allocation of the scheme attracts a proportion of the Depot Overhead 
which is a fixed cost to the City. Spreading this cost across more projects 
reduces the liability on individual schemes and reduces the risk of under-
recovery of the overhead cost across the 2018/19 programme. 

Page 15



4

3.  Project Costs

3.1 A breakdown of the costs to which are being sought for approval are detailed 
below:

Works Cost
Measured Works £396,934.84
Depot Overhead (17.55%) £69,662.06
Depot Profit (8.15%) £38,027.65

Sub Total £504,624.55

Professional Fees
UVPL Highway Design Supervision and CDM Fees  
from DSPA Appendix 3 Footway, Paving & 
Environmental Improvements:
HD Supervision - 4.1% of Highway Design proportion 
of works value @ £399,209.94
CDM – 50% of band 12 rate @ £1,100

£16,917.61

UVPL Road Safety Audit Fees (Stage 3/4)
DSPA Appendix 3 - Time-charge based

£2,377.09

UVPL Landscape Design Supervision Fee (DSPA) £6020.00
UVPL Landscape Detailed Design (DSPA) £5,446.39

Sub Total £30,761.09

Other Costs
TfGM Traffic Signal Installation £29,564.28  
BT Works £1,061.65
United Utilities Drainage Connections £1,665.00

Sub Total £32,290.93

Grand Total £567,676.57

4. Funding 

4.1 Funding for Bloom Street is to be drawn down from the following sources:

2017/18 Block 3 Transport Capital Programme (Carried forward) - 
£174,424.00

2018/19 Block 3 Transport Capital Programme - £271,251.73
2018/19 Block 3 Transport Capital Programme (Ordsall & Langworthy 
Highways Devolved Budget) - £10,530.27
2018/19 Regeneration Capital Programme - £111,470.57

5. Social Value

5.1 Urban Vision Highway Services is a signatory of the Salford City Mayor’s 
Employment Charter, making a commitment to creating the best possible 
working conditions for employees, and supply chain partners. Employees are 
paid no less than the Salford Living Wage of £9.00/hour and subcontractor 
payments are made as quickly as possible.

5.2 Urban Vision Highways Services seeks to maximise labour sourced from the 
local area and ensure Salford businesses benefit directly from the project. 
Wherever possible, materials are sourced from local companies, benefitting 
the local economy.

Page 16



5

6. Maintenance

6.1 Consultation has taken place with appropriate officers within Highway 
Maintenance at Urban Vision and the grounds maintenance team within the 
Place Directorate to ensure that the design and material choice is appropriate 
in relation to constructability, durability and future maintenance.

The public realm elements of the scheme, at the end of the contract 
maintenance period will result in an increased annual maintenance cost to 
keep the area to a good standard.  This uplift has been calculated to be 
£10,003 per annum based on typical similar projects.

A 12 month allocation will be made for hard works and 24 month for soft-works 
(trees, SUDs and rain gardens) within the construction contract to initially 
cover maintenance and defects.

It is therefore recommended that £10,003 is set aside within the City Council’s 
annual revenue budget realm for uplift in maintenance associated with the 
provision of new public realm schemes following completion of the contract 
maintenance and defects periods.

This level of uplifted maintenance is not a guaranteed occurrence and is likely 
to vary year upon year. If in any particular year, the full amount is not required, 
it is further recommended that any money remaining in the budget be rolled 
over in to subsequent years. 

7. Delivery Timetable

7.1 It is anticipated that work will start on site in January 2018 and will be 
completed by the end of March 2018.   

8. Conclusion

8.1 The works will improve multi-user connectivity and identify Bloom Street as an 
important pedestrian and cycling link for neighbouring communities to access 
Manchester city centre. 

8.2 It is recommended that the Procurement Board give their approval to appoint 
Urban Vision Highway Services at a cost of £504,624.55 and Urban Vision 
Professional Services at a cost of £30,671.09 to undertake the installation of a 
Toucan crossing combined with localised footway/carriageway and landscape 
improvements on Bloom Street and William Street. 

8.3 It is recommended that the Procurement Board authorise expenditure of 
£32,290.93 for the installation of traffic signal equipment and utility works 
required for the implementation of the scheme.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Local Transport Plan 

Page 17



6

Local Road Safety Strategy  

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

The proposed project has been designed by Urban Vision Highway Engineers who 
are satisfied that the work complies with the Disability Discrimination Act and 
highway safety standards. 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low

 Projects to carry out similar works within the City have been delivered 
successfully in the past. 

 Detailed designs have been drawn up for the project and the submitted tender 
price reflects this.

 There is funding allocated in the SCC’s Block 3 Capital Programme for 
2018/19

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:
Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the City Council must comply with the requirements of public 
procurement regulations and its own Contractual Standing Orders failing which the 
decision may be subject to legal challenge. 

The report seeks approval for the instruction of Urban Vision Partnership Limited to 
undertake works at Bloom Street to create a pedestrian and cycling route, and in that 
regard the Council will effectively appoint Urban Vision under the terms of the 
exclusivity arrangement with them contained in the Development Services Partnering 
Agreement. Previous approval for the removal of the threshold levels for UV to 
undertake highway works and services such as these has been obtained, allowing 
them to be awarded higher value projects than those set out in the current contract 
terms and conditions.

Additionally TfGM will carry out and provide traffic signalling as part of the project in 
accordance with the agreement with them.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
kath
Supplied by: Alison Woods, Finance Officer, Tel. 925 113
Date supplied: 16th November  2018

Capital
The cost of the aforementioned proposed scheme, will be met from a combination of 
unsupported borrowing and Highways Block 3 grant funding. There is confirmed 
Block 3 funding available of £456,206 and the balance of £111,470 will be funded 
from general unsupported borrowing (transferred from the approved Regeneration 
and Property capital programme 2018/19).

Page 18



7

Expenditure should be closely monitored to ensure that this scheme is delivered 
within the allocated resources.

Expenditure code: D00422

Revenue
There is a confirmed revenue budget to support the additional maintenance 
requirement of £10,003 per annum. Annual expenditure will be reviewed on a year by 
year basis.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: 
Supplied by: Christine Flisk, Procurement Manager ext. 6245 & Paul Nugent, 
Strategic Head of Procurement ext. 6246

Urban Vision Partnership was procured through a fully compliant OJEU procurement 
process is in contract with the council until 2020. The exclusivity agreement with 
Urban Vision Partnership for delivering Highway services is in place to deliver works 
to under the DSPA agreement.  The delivery agreement can be varied by agreement 
between both parties to vary this agreement. 

The works have been subcontracted by Urban Vision Partnership Ltd by inviting 
quotes from suitably qualified contractors. The contract will be awarded to the lowest 
priced contractor.  The value for money assessment has been provided in this report 
for the delivery of this project through the Depot.

Procurement Engagement – None.  All procurement activity has been carried out by 
Urban Vision.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Environmental Services

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Ordsall and Irwell Riverside

CONTACT OFFICER:  
Stephen Hands, Urban Vision Partnership Limited x4931

Ben Dolan
Strategic Director
Place

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



1

 Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PEOPLE

 TO THE LEAD MEMBER FOR CHILDREN’S AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICES

AND 

PROCUREMENT BOARD

TITLE: Piloting the bulk-purchasing of full-time equivalent Alternative Provision 
placements for pupils in KS3 and KS4

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. To note the details of the report 
2. To approve an exception to Contractual Standing orders to the use of 

£102,534 to spot-purchase additional placements for pupils referred onto the 
pilot mid-year and to approve an exception to the award of £9,000 to City 
West Housing Trust for five construction placements. 

3. To approve the following contract awards issued via the AP-DPS

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project Full Time Provision

Name of Successful Contractor The Clifton Centre/ Salford Open Learning
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Public Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Contract Value £42,500 Full Project
Contract Duration 8 months

Contract Start Date 05/12/2018
Contract End Date 26/07/2019

Page 21

Agenda Item 5c



2

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Part Time Provision – Physical Activity / 
Wellbeing

Name of Successful Contractor The Sports School Partnership
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
3785437

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Registered Charity

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Contract Value £99,998 Full Project
Contract Duration 8 months

Contract Start Date 05/12/2018
Contract End Date 26/07/2019

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Part Time Provision – Sports Coaching / Life 
Skills

Name of Successful Contractor SMS Coaching
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
07725711

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Contract Value £99,998 Full Project
Contract Duration 8 months

Contract Start Date 05/12/2018
Contract End Date 26/07/2019

7 5SZ

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Part Time Provision – Hair & Beauty 

Name of Successful Contractor SMS Coaching
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
07725711

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Page 22



3

Contract Value £42,200 Full Project
Contract Duration 8 months

Contract Start Date 05/12/2018
Contract End Date 26/07/2019

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Part Time Provision – Animal Care

Name of Successful Contractor Carrington Riding Centre
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
03753552

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Contract Value £4,760 Full Project
Contract Duration 8 months

Contract Start Date 05/12/2018
Contract End Date 26/07/2019

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project Part Time Provision – Construction

Name of Successful Contractor City West Housing Trust
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
HCA L4528

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Industrial & Provident Society

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Contract Value £9000 Full Project
Contract Duration 8 months

Contract Start Date 05/12/2018
Contract End Date 26/07/2019

Reason for CSO Exception
(select all that apply)  

The need for the goods, services or works is so urgent that 
the time needed to comply with the rules would be 
prejudicial to the Council’s interests

X

4. To approve to go out to tender for a procurement solution for Alternate 
education provision.27 5SZ

Page 23



4

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The local authority has been working with secondary Headteachers to pilot a new 
approach to purchasing placements of alternative provision (AP) for Salford pupils 
who are most at risk of exclusion during the 2018/19 academic year. The pilot will 
support a minimum of forty pupils from KS3 and KS4 to access better quality AP that 
helps them to improve attainment and behaviour, with a view to reintegrating back 
into mainstream education (or supporting progress to an appropriate post-16 
destination if the pupil is in Year 11).

As part of the pilot, full-time equivalent (FTE) placements are charged at a standard 
rate of £10,000 per pupil – 90% payable by the school and 10% by the Council – 
meaning the total amount of funding available through the pilot is £400,000. 

A FTE placement consists of 25 hours of education per week and providers are 
expected to make the placement available to the pupil(s) for a full academic year (i.e. 
38 weeks).

During the summer, a procurement process was carried out via the local authority’s 
Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) for AP to help secure the forty FTE placements 
needed for the pilot. Seven different packages were offered to providers, each with 
different vocational aims and/or delivery requirements, and providers were invited to 
bid for packages based on their DPS approval status. 

This paper outlines the conclusions and recommendations from the procurement 
process and how funding that has not been awarded via the DPS will be allocated to 
providers as part of the pilot.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: n/a

KEY DECISION: No

DETAILS:

Background

An Alternative Provision Working Group was established by the In-Year Fair Access 
Panel (IYFAP) two years and has been meeting on a termly-basis to discuss the 
arrangements and opportunities for strengthening the commissioning of AP for 
vulnerable pupils in Salford. In July 2018, the Working Group agreed to pilot a new 
model for bulk-purchasing FTE AP placements which would be undertaken during 
the 2018/19 academic year. Placements would be charged at a standard rate of £10k 
– schools paying for 90% of the placement with a 10% contribution from the local 
authority – with the principles aims of the pilot to:

Page 24



5

 reduce the number of fixed-term and/or permanent exclusions in KS3 and KS4 
and;

 create a more consistent pricing structure for AP placements in Salford

In most cases, it was agreed that pupils referred onto the pilot would be at risk of 
permanent exclusion and would therefore require a full-time AP offer to help them 
address the barriers and challenges experienced in mainstream education. However, 
it was also agreed that some schools could choose to 'split' their placements 
between one or more pupils, especially where a part-time AP placement was 
considered to be a more appropriate offer alongside the pupil’s core curriculum. In 
most cases, these pupils would still be considered to be at risk of exclusion, but the 
part-time AP would be delivered as part of an intervention support programme to 
avoid further escalation. 

Under these terms, the following schools have agreed to be part of the pilot:

School No. of placements Cost (inc. 10% LA 
contribution) 

The Albion Academy 8 £80000
All Hallows 3 £30000
Buile Hill 1 £10000
The Clifton Centre 3 £30000
Ellesmere Park 3 £30000
Harrop Fold 5 £50000
Moorside 3 £30000
The New Broadwalk 2 £20000
Oasis 2 £20000
Salford City Academy 5 £50000
St Ambrose Barlow 1 £10000
St Patricks 1 £10000
Walkden High 1 £10000
Co-op Academy Swinton 2 £20000

Procurement

An evaluation of the current provision being used by schools – including successful 
delivery models and recommended pricing structures – was carried out by the local 
authority to help determine the types and maximum price payable for the provision 
needed for the AP pilot. In total, seven contracts were created and issued via the 
DPS, each with different learning objectives and pricing structures.

Due to the likelihood of some pupils accessing more than one provision as part of 
their FTE placement, the majority of packages were split into days rather than FTE 
packages. The only FTE package (i.e. 5 days per week for 38 weeks) was Lot 1.

Collectively, the cumulative value of the contracts offered was £360,000 – leaving 
£40,000 (the equivalent of four FTE placements) available to cover more bespoke 
and/or reactive requests received from schools mid-year.

The outcome of the procurement process was as follows:

Page 25



6Page 26



7

Lot Lot Title Max 
Contract 
Value

No. of 
Bidders

Successful Bidder Contract 
Award 
Value

1 Full Time Provision £50,000 2 Salford Open 
Learning

£42,500

2 Part Time Provision – 
Physical Activity / 
Wellbeing

£100,000 1 The Sports School £99,998

3 Part Time Provision – 
Sports Coaching / 
Life Skills

£100,000 1 SMS Coaching £99,008

4 Part Time Provision – 
Hair & Beauty 

£43,000 3 SMS Coaching £42,200

5 Part Time Provision – 
Construction

£35,000 3 No award -

6 Part Time Provision – 
Animal Care

£5,000 1 Carrington Riding 
Centre

£4,760

7 Complementary – 
Bespoke

£27,000 8 No award -

Provider submissions were assessed on quality (70%) and price (30%) by a small 
panel, and following an evaluation and moderation exercise, it was determined that 
Lots 1-4 and Lot 6 should be awarded to the highest scoring provider. 

However, for Lots 5 and 7, the panel determined that no award should be made due 
to unsatisfactory outcomes from bidding process. In part, this was because of the 
DPS not supporting the highly personalised and bespoke nature of the provision 
needed for learners, but also because the quality of the submissions were poor and it 
was not possible to make an informed decision about the appropriateness of 
respective providers’ proposed offer.

As all successful providers came in under the maximum contract value, the 
committed expenditure from the contract awards is £288,466, leaving a total of 
£111,534 still unallocated. As there is an urgent need to secure more provision for 
the pilot, it has been proposed that the unallocated funds are used as follows:

 £27,000 allocated to Lot 7 to be made available to ‘spot-purchase’ provision 
from the eight providers that submitted bids to this Lot. The cumulative value 
of the provision being purchased from any single provider will not exceed 
£10,000 and will be used to secure responsive and flexible one-day-per-week 
provision for pupils, either as part of a broader package of full-time AP or to 
complement the pupil’s core school curriculum. Provision will aim to be 

Page 27



8

secured at an indicative day rate of £52 or less, to ensure it remains within the 
programme budget.

 £9,000 from the Lot 5 budget to be allocated to City West Housing Trust 
(ForViva Group) to secure five one-day per week construction placements. 

 The remaining £26,000 allocated to Lot 5 to be used for construction-related 
AP placements using the spot-purchasing model described above. It is 
proposed that the local authority’s AP Coordinator works with the Build Salford 
Project Coordinator (due to start at the end November) to manage referrals 
and to secure placements from a range of different providers linked to the 
Build Salford Alternative Provision project that is being funded by the 
Department for Education. Not only will this offer an increased level of 
flexibility at the point of referral, but will help the AP Coordinator and the 
Project Coordinator to grow and develop the sector-based construction offer, 
allowing for new providers and contractors to enter the AP market on a formal 
or exploratory basis.

 The £40,000 originally left unallocated – along with the £9,534 saved from the 
award of five contracts below the maximum funding allocation – to be made 
available for bespoke packages of FTE AP that has not been secured through 
the DPS. In particular, this may include full-time packages for pupils in KS3 
who cannot be placed with Salford Open Learning under Lot 1 (“Full Time 
Provision”) because of the provider having an offer limited to pupils in KS4. 

It is possible that the cost of the FTE packages may exceed £10,000, especially 
where the pupil requires a more personalised and responsive from a single provider 
to help address complex needs and challenges. Therefore, a pre-emptive exception 
to contractual standing orders may need to be requested to allow the AP Coordinator 
to secure and place pupils in provision costing more than £10,000 within the five 
days required from receipt of referral.

Referrals
 Once a student has been identified as being suitable for an Alternative Education 
programme a member of school staff – (usually the SENCO, Deputy Head, 
Behaviour Manager or Attendance Lead), contacts The Alternative Education 
Coordinator who then; 
   

 makes an appointment to go into the school to discuss the referral and where 
possible meets with a parent or carer and the student being considered for a 
placement 

 reviews all the information provided by the school including behaviour and 
attendance logs, KS 2 & KS3 test results, recent reports and target grades

 assesses whether the student has had the required amount of support in 
school and whether any reasonable adjustments to current timetable could 
help the student stay in school before accessing Alternative Education 
Programmes

 assesses whether there are any undiagnosed learning needs which may be 
preventing the student from accessing the curriculum offer in school and 
considers a suitable Alternative Education pathway. This may be full time or 

Page 28



9

part time, depending on which option is believed to be the most appropriate 
for the student

 includes the School, parent/carer and student in this process
 contacts the Provider and discusses the referral before uploading the referral 

information for consideration by the Provider

The Provider will then offer a pre-admit / induction meeting for the parent/carer, 
student and Alternative Education coordinator to attend. This is usually within 2 days 
of the referral being received by them. If the provider can meet the needs of the 
student, a placement will be offered to start as soon as possible, which could be the 
next day.

The process will be the same for all placements. For spot purchases, the Alternative 
Education Coordinator will negotiate a price within the limitations of the budget and 
will obtain a Purchase order number for the invoicing.        

Monitoring and Evaluation
 As much information as possible is considered before a referral is processed 

by the Alternative Education Coordinator. This can include information 
provided by Primary School, Social Care SEN assessments, baseline 
attainment figures and projections for target grades and progress 8 scores.  
Possible future career pathways and interests are also considered for KS4 
students

 The Pilot is going to be monitored by the Alternative Education Coordinator 
and the Services to Schools Manager.  This will consider whether the pilot 
has met its planned objectives for reducing exclusions and for creating a 
more consistent and efficient pricing model for AP placements. 

 Student progress tracking will be monitored during regular QA visits made by 
the Alternative Education Coordinator where lesson observations, marking 
scrutiny and personal health & wellbeing checks will be carried out as well as 
regular reports every half term. These are expected to be in detail and 
comment on attendance, punctuality and academic achievements

 Students accessing Alternative Education programmes should be given 
access to appropriate careers guidance irrespective of their year group. We 
will monitor these arrangements as part of the pilot, but will ensure pupils in 
Y11 are given specific access to a Connexions Adviser and/or the newly 
appointed College Transition Mentor (funded via the Alternative Provision 
Innovation Fund project)

 The Alternative Education Coordinator attends LAC, ECHP, PEP CP, CIN 
meetings for the students who are accession education away from the school 
setting.     

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
 
Exclusion Reduction Strategy when finalised

Page 29



10

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

n/a

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

Contact officer and telephone number: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323
Date provided: 26.10.18
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the execution of 
works, the Council must comply with the requirements of the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which any subsequent 
award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. CSO’s 
apply to every contract, including temporary ones, for the procurement of supplies, services 
and the execution of works undertaken by or on behalf of the Council, subject to certain 
exceptions listed in the Orders. 
The proposed award of the contracts follows an exercise by inviting bids under the Council’s 
Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS). 
For information, a DPS is similar to an electronic framework agreement, with two exceptions, 
new suppliers can join at any time and it is to be run as a completely electronic process. 
Dynamic Purchasing Systems are used exclusively by public sector organisations and are 
designed to save time and money by being a quick and easy way to access goods, services 
and works through an OJEU compliant route.
When awarding contracts under a DPS, all admitted participants should be invited to submit 
a tender for each specific procurement exercise conducted under the DPS, and there is a 
requirement for the Council to publish contract award notices for contracts awarded under 
the DPS. These must be sent for publication within 30 days of award; however, it is possible 
to group DPS contract award notices on a quarterly basis.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Debbie Fulton - Finance Officer
Tel: 161 788 0486

Date provided: 17.10.18

SAP Cost Centre: E1163 6018.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Christine Flisk ext 6245
The procurement process has been outlined within the body of the report.  The procurement 
activity has been procured through and OJEU compliant DPS system for SCC Alternative 

Page 30

https://www.procurementjourney.scot/node/163/


11

Provision DPS through mini competition. The current DPS is due to expire in March 2019, 
the DPS was created to improve the selection and quality of SCC’s alternate education 
provision including meeting safeguarding standards. There is a risk that an aggrieved 
supplier could challenge the proposal to spot purchase the requirements but this is 
considered to be low as this is an interim measure for the initial pilot.   Upon the successful 
conclusion of the pilot the procurement team will work closely with the alternative education 
coordinator to ensure that the next generation procurement solution will meet the 
requirements of the service for all of the schools budget for this service.
Procurement engagement Low/ Medium/ High. 

HR IMPLICATIONS 

n/a

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:

n/a

CONTACT OFFICER:    

Karen Hamer
Sheila Arnott     

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Part 1 – Open to the public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for Place

TO  

Procurement Board

ON

28th November2018

TITLE:  Request for Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to 
award a contract for Fire Alarms and Emergency Lighting – Inspection and 
Maintenance

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Procurement Board  

(1) Approve an exception to Contractual Standing Orders in accordance with 
Paragraph 3.1 as follows:

 The need for the goods, services or works is so urgent that the time needed to 
comply with the rules would be prejudicial to the council’s interests.

 There are value for money reasons justifying an exception.

(2) Approve the award of the Contract for Fire Alarms and Emergency Lighting – 
Inspection and Maintenance.

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Fire Alarms and Emergency Lighting – 

Inspection and Maintenance
Name of Successful Contractor Churches Fire Security Ltd
Supplier Registration Number 02703471

Page 33

Agenda Item 5d



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Non-SME

Contract Value £22,000 Full Project
Contract Duration 6 months

Contract Start Date 12/10/2018
Contract End Date 31/03/2019

Optional Extension Period 1 n/a
Optional Extension Period 2 n/a

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Choose an item.

Contact Officer (Name & number) Lee Clare 

Lead Service Group Partner (please identify below)
The need for the goods, services or works is so urgent that 
the time needed to comply with the rules would be 
prejudicial to the Council’s interests
There are value for money reasons justifying a CSO 
Exception

Reason for CSO Exception
(select all that apply)

Funding Source Revenue Budget

(3) Note that prior to the end of the period of time covered by the exception as 
indicated in 2 above, the Strategic Director will determine whether the service is 
to be decommissioned or, in consultation with the Corporate  Procurement 
Team, will agree to undertake a compliant procurement process to re-let the 
contract by the end of the exception period.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek request an exception to Contractual Standing 
Orders to approve the award of a contract for Fire Alarms and Emergency Lighting – 
Inspection and Maintenance. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Page 34



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Report to procurement Board 29th September 2015

KEY DECISION: 

No

DETAILS: 

As part of the service review in to the maintenance and management of property in 
2014 it was agreed to put the council’s contracts for the provision of inspection and 
testing of fire alarms and emergency lighting on a longer-term footing for both 
“corporate” properties and schools that take up the SLA opportunity for this service.

The existing contract expired on 10th October 2018, without the procurement of a 
further contract.

However the requirement for the council is to ensure that both fire and emergency 
lighting systems are checked and certificated to the relevant British Standard. This 
requires a 6-monthly check of 50% of the fire alarm equipment and an annual check 
of 100% of the emergency lighting equipment. There are approximately 90 properties 
on the corporate list and over 50 schools covered.

Therefore although a new procurement process has been instigated (under 
delegated authority), the statutory requirements will require intervention before the 
new contract can be completed for April 1st 2019.

The current contractor will maintain the existing pricing structure for the period to 31st 
March 2019, therefore providing better value than attempting to procure a short-term 
contract at this stage.

Therefore an exception is being sought on the basis of;
 The need for the goods, services or works is so urgent that the time needed to 

comply with the rules would be prejudicial to the Council’s interests.
 Value for Money.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Health and Safety

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-  

N/A

Page 35



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

High

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   

Revenue budgets

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

Ordinarily when commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or 
the execution of works the Council as a ‘contracting authority’ must comply with the 
Public Contract Regulations 2015 as well as the provisions of its own Contractual 
Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and the duties of Best and Social 
value. In addition, the Regulations require that contracting authorities treat 
candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner, 
failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge. For contracts 
of this value the Council would usually undertake an exercise to obtain quotes from 
three suitably qualified providers.

However in exceptional circumstances where the Council’s Contractual Standing 
Orders permit, the Council may dispense with strict compliance of its CSO’s, and the 
report sets out the reasons for the request for the exception, in accordance with  
paragraph 3.1 of CSO’s, namely urgency and value for money. Whilst exceptions to 
CSO’s may be authorised by an approval from the Procurement Board, there is still a 
risk of challenge from aggrieved providers if the usual tender process has not been 
followed on the basis that it ought to have been advertised and put out to 
competition.

The risk of challenge increases with the value and duration of a proposed contract 
being awarded. Here the period proposed is very short and is for an extremely low 
value, with a very tight time scale for delivery. To assist in minimising the possibility 
of successful challenge, the Council is planning a full and comprehensive 
procurement exercise in 6 months’ time.  The Council is not avoiding full public 
tender but is having interim contractual arrangements to allow time to better prepare 
for procurement.   Accordingly the risk of any such challenge may be regarded as 
extremely low.  

The Council is also under a best value duty to carry out its functions economically, 
efficiently and effectively with the objective to achieve value for money in all public 
procurement. The Council has considered the circumstances in this matter and 
concluded that the recommendation to award the contract to Churches Fire Security 
Ltd is considered to be of least risk and of most benefit to the Council.

Page 36



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Gemma Singleton x2578 & Debbie Fulton 
x0486

For Corporate Properties funding is available in the repairs and maintenance budget. 

For the schools, the expenditure will be included in their annual budget plans to be 
funded from their delegated budgets.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Jennifer Hilton – Category Manager 
– x.6241

The service requirement is for a six month period with an approximate value of 
around £22,000 until 31st March 2019 whilst a procurement process is undertaken for 
a new contract award date of the 1st April 2019. Undertaking a competitive open 
procedure will comply with the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

None

CONTACT OFFICER: Lee Clare Senior Electrical Design Engineer
TEL. NO. (0161) 779 6020                                        

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): 

None

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Name of Report:  Approval for an 
Exception to Contractual Standing 
Orders to award a contract to appoint 
Multi-Disciplinary Design Team 
consultants to take forward design 
proposals for the proposed 
Intermediate Care Unit 

Committee Procurement Board

Date 28.11.18

Category of exemption applied: 3 Information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding that information)

Public Interest Test Questionnaire
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality.

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in 
public debate about current issues?

No

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions? 

No

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers? 

No

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives? 

No

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)  

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice?

No

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred?

No

Page 39

Agenda Item 8a



FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information?

Yes

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information? 

Yes

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation?

No

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving 
the public useful information? 

Yes

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or 
individuals at risk? 

No

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general 
would benefit more from information being withheld? 

 

Yes

Justification of decision
(Please provide explicit reasoning)

This decision is regarding the appointment of a design team regarding the 
potential development of an Intermediate Care facility on the Stott Lane car 
park.  The outcome of the work of the design team will then determine next 
steps.  Should the outcome of the design team’s work be favourable toward the 
development of a unit, then due process will be followed with regards the 
decision making and seeking planning permission which will give the 
opportunity for the public to engage.  

Name and Title:  Judd Skelton

Date: 19.11.18

Page 40


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 14 November 2018
	5a Request for Contract Extension - Step up to Social Work
	5b Bloom Street and William Street Public Realm Improvements
	5c Piloting the Bulk Purchasing of Full-time Equivalent Alternative Provision Placements for Pupils in KS3 and KS4
	5d Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - Contract award - Fire Alarms and Emergency Lighting - inspection and Maintenance
	8a Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - Award of contract - Multi-Disciplinary Design Team consultants - Proposed Intermediate Care Unit

